
 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 - 6:30 P.M. 

CITY HALL 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / A MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS / AUDIENCE PRESENTATIONS 

Citizens wanting to address the Council can do so at this time.  Persons addressing the Council are 

requested to give their name and address for the record when called on by the Mayor. 

 

4. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 

 

5. PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 

  

6. REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

A. Consider Public Act 116 Application for Farmland Agreement [Action Item] 

B. Resolution 2019-20 MDOT Trunkline Maintenance Contract and 

Signature Authorization [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

C. Water System Improvement Project – Contract No.1 Pay Request [Action Item] 

D. Schedule Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 218 Projections into Yards; 

Electronic Changeable Copy Signs [Action Item] 

E. Schedule Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 219 Re-Codified Ordinances [Action Item] 

F. MML Liability and Property Pool Board of Directors Ballot [Action Item] 

G. Jonesville Freedom Memorial Fund Activity Statement [Information Item] 

 

7. COUNCIL MINUTES 

A. Consider minutes of the August 21, 2019 Regular Meeting  [Action Item]  

   

8. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A.  Accounts Payable for September 2019 totalling $127,542.85 [Action Item] 

 

9. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

A. Fire Department – Chief Adair 

B. Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant – Superintendent Mahoney 

C. Department of Public Works – Superintendent Kyser 

D. Police Department – Chief Lance 

E. Cash Report – Finance Director Spahr 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT  

 



 

 
To: Jonesville City Council 

From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 

Date: September 13, 2019 

Re: Manager Report and Recommendations – September 18, 2019 Council Meeting 

 

6. A. Consider Public Act 116 Application for Farmland Agreement [Action Item] 

The City has received an application from P&D Farms LLC for a Farmland Agreement under Public Act 

116.  If approved, owner would enter into an agreement with the State of Michigan that the property 

would remain in agricultural use for a minimum of 10 years.  In return, the owner would receive certain 

income tax credits and exemption from local special assessments during the term of the agreement.  After 

the initial term, the agreement may be extended for a minimum of 7 years up to 90 years.  The subject 

property is 32.4 acres and is located on the west side of Olds Street, south of the Jonesville Industrial 

Park.  The property surrounds the TSC parcel on three sides.  The application must be approved or denied 

by the City before being filed with the State of Michigan.  A motion to approve or deny is required.  

Please refer to the Application for Farmland Agreement and program brochure.  

 

6. B. Resolution 2019-20 MDOT Maintenance Contract and  

Signature Authorization [ROLL CALL][Action Item] 

It is necessary to renew the City’s five-year maintenance contract with the Michigan Department of 

Transportation (MDOT).  The renewed contract (Contract No. 2019-0709) will cover the period from 

October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024.  The contract provides for the City to complete 

maintenance activities for MDOT on Chicago Street/US-12 and Evans Street/M-99 and Olds Street/M-99.  

The contract provides for compensation for those maintenance activities.  The scope of work is 

unchanged from previous contracts.  I would recommend approval of the resolution to approve the 

maintenance contract and to authorize the Mayor and City Manager to execute the same.   

A roll-call vote is necessary to approve the resolution.    Please refer to the attached transmittal email 

and Resolution 2019-20. The thirty-seven page contract is on file at City Hall and may be reviewed in its 

entirety upon request. 

 

6. C. Water System Improvement Project – Contract No. 1 Pay Request [Action Item] 

Attached is the second pay request for the Iron Removal Plant improvements from Parrish Excavating, 

Inc.  Payment is for costs associated with shop drawings and contractor mobilization and is in accordance 

with the bid for the project.  The request includes a 10% retainage, which will be paid upon satisfactory 

completion of the project.  The project designer, Fleis and Vandenbrink, has reviewed and recommends 

payment in the amount of $74,187.00.  I recommend a motion to approve the pay request, as stated.  

Please refer to the application for payment and progress estimate.  

 

6. D. Schedule Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 218 [Action Item] 

The Planning Commission acted at their September 11th regular meeting to recommend that the City 

Council approve Ordinance No. 218.  The Ordinance would amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow 

covered porches to extend up to 10 feet into a front or rear setback.  Currently, the porches or decks that 

are covered by a roof, but open on the sides to meet the required setbacks.  This amendment would 

address variances that have been approved in recent months by the Zoning Board of Appeals to allow 

such porches. 

 



Manager Report and Recommendations 

September 18, 2019 Council Meeting 

Page 2 of 2 

 
The amendment would also amend sign regulations to allow for electronic message signs.  These are sign 

boards that display images and text on electronic boards, often using LED technology.  The advantage of 

these signs is that the message can change, increasing the advertising that can take place in a fixed space.  

Currently, these signs are not permitted in the City under the Zoning Ordinance.  The recommended 

language would address brightness, length of display, and prohibition of moving or flashing copy. 

 

Two property owners have previously installed such signs without permits.  As indicated in the attached 

letters, these owners have been provided with notice of the need to bring the signs into compliance with 

the new regulations, if they are approved by Council. 

 

I recommend a motion to set a public hearing for Ordinance No. 218 for the October 16, 2019 City 

Council meeting to be held at 6:30 p.m. at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street.  Please refer to 

Ordinance No. 218 and two property owner letters. 

 

6. E.  Schedule Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 219 [Action Item] 

Ordinance No. 219 would enact a newly recodified City of Jonesville Code.  The recodification would 

update all references to Village to City, to reflect City incorporation.  The new Code would also 

incorporate the approved City Charter, as well as all ordinance amendments that have been approved 

since the last general codification.  The Code is reorganized, as well.  A complete copy of the updated 

Code is available in City Hall for review and inspection.  I recommend a motion to set a public hearing 

for Ordinance No. 219 for the October 16, 2019 City Council meeting to be held at 6:30 p.m. at the 

Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street.  Please refer to Ordinance No. 219. 

 

6. F.  MML Liability and Property Pool Board of Directors Ballot [Action Item] 

One incumbent is seeking re-election to one available spot on the MML Liability and Property Pool 

Board of Director’s election.  The Pool is City’s liability insurance provider. You may write in a 

candidate if you wish.  A motion to cast the ballot is necessary.  I would recommend that a vote be cast 

for the incumbent for re-election to the MML Liability and Property Pool Board of Directors.  Please note 

the attached candidate profile. 

 

6. G.  Jonesville Freedom Memorial Fund Activity Statement  [Action Item] 

The Fund Activity Statement from the Hillsdale County Community Foundation is attached and shows an 

investment return of 9.8% year-to-date.  Reimbursement of incurred expenses during fiscal year 2018-19 

is also reflected on the statement.  Please refer to the attached Fund Activity Statement. 





























Which lands are eligible?
A farm is eligible if one of the following is true:

• Parcel is 40 acres or larger, and a minimum of 
51% of the land is devoted to agricultural use;

• Farm is at least five acres but less than 40 acres 
in size; at least 51% of the land is devoted 
to agricultural use; and the agricultural land 
produces a gross annual income of $200 or 
more per tillable acre. (Parcels enrolled in the 
Conservation Reserve Program are considered 
to meet the gross income requirement.); or 

• Farm has been designated as a specialty farm 
by MDARD, is a minimum of 15 acres, and has  
a gross annual income exceeding $2,000/yr.

“Agricultural use” means the production of 
plants and animals useful to humans, use in a 
federal acreage set-aside program, or a federal 
conservation program. Agricultural use does 
not include the management and harvesting of           
a woodlot. 

New Structures & Land Improvements
Structures may be built on the land if the use 
of the structure will be consistent with farm 
operations. A house for an individual essential   
to the operation of the farm would be consistent 
with farm operations. 

No.

ENROLLMENT, 
ELIGIBILITY 

AND BENEFITS 
OF FARMLAND 

AGREEMENTS  

Farmland  and Open Space 
Preservation Program

How long does the agreement last?
A minimum of 10 years and a maximum of 90 
years.

Extension
After the initial term, an agreement can be 
extended a minimum of seven years.

Expiration
During the last year of the agreement, the 
holder will be sent a notice asking whether the 
agreement will be extended or allowed to expire. 

If the agreement holder chooses to let the 
agreement expire, any tax credits received during 
the last seven years of the agreement must be 
repaid. The agreement holder will be notified of 
the amount. If the amount is not paid within 30 
days, a lien will be placed against the property.

Revising Agreements
Visit www.michigan.gov/farmland and click 
“Changing an Existing Farmland Development 
Rights Agreement.”

Michigan Department of 
Agriculture & Rural Development
Farmland Preservation Program  
P.O. Box 30449, Lansing, MI 48909
Phone: 517-284-5663
MDARD-PA116@michigan.gov
www.michigan.gov/farmland

Must the landowner provide 
public access?



What is the Farmland and Open 
Space Preservation Program?
The Farmland and Open Space Preservation 
Program is designed to protect farmland and 
open space through agreements that restrict 
development and provide tax incentives for 
program participation. 

What does the Farmland and Open 
Space Act do?
The act enables a landowner to enter into a 
Development Rights Agreement with the State 
of Michigan. The agreement ensures the land 
remains in agricultural use for a minimum of 
10 years and is protected from non-agricultural 
development. In return, the landowner may be 
entitled to certain income tax benefits and the 
land is not subject to special assessments for 
sanitary sewer, water, lights, or non-farm drain 
projects.

How does the landowner benefit 
from enrollment in the program?
Tax Credits: 

Benefits under an agreement depend on the 
tax assessed against the property and the 
landowner’s income. The landowner is entitled to 
claim a Michigan income tax credit equal to the 
amount of the property taxes on the land and 
improvements covered by the agreement, less 
3.5% of the landowner’s total household income.

For example, if the landowner has an income 
of $20,000 and property taxes on the farm total 
$2,000, he/she would subtract $700 (3.5% of 
$20,000) from the $2,000 property tax for an 
income tax credit of $1,300. This tax credit is in 
addition to the Homestead Property Tax Credit,  
for which the landowner may already be qualified.

Special Assessments: 

• Qualified land enrolled under an agreement is 
exempt from special assessments for sanitary 
sewers, water, lights, or non-farm drainage, 
unless the assessments were imposed prior 
to the enrollment of the land in a farmland 
agreement. 

• If the landowner decides to make use of the 
local government’s sanitary sewer, water, lights, 
or non-farm drainage on land enrolled under an 
agreement, the landowner will be required to 
pay the special assessment(s).

• When the farmland agreement is terminated, 
the local government may require payment of 
the special assessment(s). This amount cannot 
exceed the amount the assessment(s) would 
have been at the initial time of the exemption 
and can not include any interest or penalty.

How does the landowner apply for 
enrollment?
Program forms are available at                          
www.michigan.gov/farmland.

Completed applications must be submitted to 
the clerk of a local governing body (i.e., city, 
village, township, or county) for review.

The local governing body has 45 days to 
approve or reject the application.

Within the 45-day period, the governing body 
must seek comments from the county/regional 
planning commission and the conservation 
district. These agencies are allowed 30 days 
from the day of notification to forward their 
comments to the clerk of the local governing 
body. If approved, the application is forwarded 
to the Michigan Department of Agriculture and 
Rural Development (MDARD). 

The application must be approved by the local 
governing body on or before November 1 to be 
eligible for that year’s tax credit.

If the application is rejected by the local 
governing body, the applicant may appeal 
directly to MDARD within 30 days after receipt 
of the rejected application. If no action is taken 
by the local governing body within the 45-day 
review period, the applicant may also appeal 
directly to MDARD.



1

Jeff Gray

From: Watson, Karen (MDOT) <WatsonK5@michigan.gov>

Sent: Thursday, August 15, 2019 12:30 PM

To: Jeff Gray

Cc: Palmer, Stephen (MDOT)

Subject: RE:  2019 Municipality State Trunkline Contract - Jonesville

Attachments: 2019 Muni Contract Jonesville with certificaton.pdf; 2019 Process for Municipality 

Contracts 81219.docx; Introduction to DocuSign SA.pdf; Certificate of Insurance blank 

0428.pdf

Good Morning, 

MDOT is pleased to announce that all new State Trunkline Maintenance contracts will be formatted for digital 

signature using the DocuSign software.  All other digital signing methods will not be accepted. 

The following documents are attached: 

1) 10/1/19 – 9/30/24 State Trunkline Maintenance Contract  

2) Directions to sign up for DocuSign.  Please note, the individual authorized in the Resolution will need to 

sign up for DocuSign.  MDOT digital signature information is located at www.michigan.gov/mdot-eSign 

3) Directions to complete the contract. 

4) Certificate of insurance form (428). 

Please email signed contract with attachments to your Region Contact, Steve Palmer at: 

PalmerS5@michigan.gov 

Upon award, you will receive a complete electronic version for your files. 

We appreciate your assistance as we continue to improve our process.  If you have any questions, please feel 

free to contact your Region Contact. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Karen Watson 

Contract Specialist 

MDOT 

 

 



2019-20
CITY OF JONESVILLE

COUNTY OF HILLSDALE
STATE OF MICHIGAN

RESOLUTION: MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT AND SIGNATURE AUTHORIZATION

Partial minutes of a regular meeting of the Jonesville City Council, County of Hillsdale, Michigan,
held in the City Hall in said City on the 18th day of September, 2019 at 6:30 p.m.

PRESENT: Councilpersons

ABSENT: Councilpersons:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Councilperson ____________and supported
by Councilperson ___________.

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville approves the maintenance contract with the Michigan
Department of Transportation from October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the City of Jonesville authorizes the City Mayor, Gerry Arno, and the City Manager,
Jeffrey Gray to sign the contract for the City; and

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of Jonesville does hereby approve the
maintenance contract with the Michigan Department of Transportation and authorizes the signing of
same.

AYES: Councilpersons:

NAYS: Councilpersons:

ABSENT: Councilpersons:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

__________________________
Cynthia D. Means, City Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City
Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting held
on September 18, 2019, and that public notice was given pursuant to Act No. 267, Public Acts of
Michigan, 1976, including in the case of a special or rescheduled meeting notice by publication or
posting at least eighteen (18) hours prior to the time set for the meeting.

__________________________
Cynthia D. Means, City Clerk



 

2960 Lucerne Drive SE 
Grand Rapids, MI 49546 

P: 616.977.1000 
F: 616.977.1005 

833560 PayRec 02.docx   

September 9, 2019 
 
Mr. Rick Mahoney 
Water and Wastewater Superintendent 
City of Jonesville 
265 E Chicago Street 
Jonesville, MI 49250 
 
RE: USDA Water System Improvements Project 
 Contract 1: Water Treatment Plant Improvements 
 Parrish Excavating, Inc. Pay Application No. 2 
 
Dear Rick, 
 
Enclosed please find Application for Payment No. 2 for the referenced project from Parrish Excavating, Inc., 
in the amount of $74,187.00 for work completed through August 2019.   
 
We have reviewed the Application for Payment and recommend the City approve payment to the contractor 
in the amount specified above.   
 
If you have any questions regarding the Application for Payment, please contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
FLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENGINEERING, INC. 
 

 
Mike Vander Ploeg, P.E. 
Project Engineer 
 
Enclosure 
 







Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

ORDINANCE NO. 218 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE TO MODIFY 

REGULATIONS ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECTIONS INTO YARDS; AND 

TO ALLOW ELECTRONIC CHANGEABLE COPY SIGNS. 

 

THE CITY OF JONESVILLE ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1. Amend Section 2.15 “Projections Into Yards” to read as follows: 

 

SECTION 2.15 PROJECTIONS INTO YARDS 

 

A. Architectural elements attached to and necessary to the integrity of the building, or the 

health or safety of the occupants, such as ramps for the disabled, cornices, eaves, gutters, 

chimneys, pilasters, unenclosed steps, fire escapes, and similar features shall be permitted 

to encroach upon the minimum setback requirements of this Ordinance, provided such 

projection into a required front or rear yard area is no closer than ten (10) feet from a street 

right-of-way line or rear lot line. No encroachment shall be permitted into the side setback 

of the lot. 

 

B. Terraces, patios, porches, and decks shall be permitted to encroach upon the minimum yard 

area and setback requirements of this Ordinance provided that they: 

 

1. are attached to the main building; and 

2. may be covered with a roof supported by a column or columns that extends no more 

than 10 feet into the front or rear yard; and 

3. may be enclosed by a railing that shall not exceed forty-eight (48) inches in height 

and shall be at least 50% open; and 

4. are located no closer than ten (10) feet from a street right-of-way line or rear lot 

line; and 

5. do not encroach into the side setback of the lot. 

 

C.  Canopy Roofs. 

 

1. Canopy roofs, such as those for gas pump islands 

accessory to automobile service stations and other 

uses, drive-in restaurants, banks, and other similar 

uses shall be permitted to encroach into any 

required yard, provided that a minimum setback 

of twelve (12) feet is maintained from any 

property line.  

2. The height of the canopy roof shall not exceed 

sixteen (16) feet and be open on all sides. 

3. The colors and design of the canopy shall be compatible with the main building.  

Canopy Roof

Recessed Light Fixtures

1
6

 f
t.



Page 2 of 3 

 

4. Lighting and signs on or within the canopy shall comply with the requirements of 

this Ordinance. Lights, including lenses and other portions of the lighting fixture, 

used for canopies shall be completely recessed in the canopy structure and shall not 

extend below the underside surface of the canopy, except that such fixtures may be 

surface mounted, provided that the fixtures are designed and constructed to achieve 

the same effect as the flush mounted fixture. 

 

Section 2. Amend Section 19.02(J), Definition of “Changeable Copy Sign” to read as 

follows:  

 

J. Changeable copy sign: Any sign designed to allow the immediate and frequent change of 

copy by manual or electronic means. 

 

 

Section 3. Amend Section 19.04, “General Sign Provisions,” Subsection K. to read as 

follows: 

 

K. All ground, freestanding and pylon signs may include changeable copy signs. 

 

 

Section 4. Amend Section 19.04, “General Sign Provisions,” to add Subsection O., as 

follows: 

 

O. Changeable Copy Sign: Any sign, or portion of a sign, that uses electronic changeable copy 

shall comply with all of the following: 

 

1. Such signs shall have static displays. Video, animation, or special effects such as 

scrolling or moving copy or images, flashing, oscillating, and bursting shall not be 

permitted. 

2. The static image shall not change more than once every 8 seconds.  

3. The illumination level of the sign shall not exceed 0.3 footcandles over ambient light, 

measured at a distance equaling the square root of the product of the sign area 

multiplied by 100.  The distance shall be rounded to the nearest whole number. 

a. The sign shall be equipped with a sensor or other device that automatically 

determines the ambient illumination and is programmed to automatically dim 

according to ambient light conditions. 

4. The owner shall supply certification from the manufacturer or installer of the sign that 

the sign is programmed to meet the illumination levels, static times and image 

requirements stated in this ordinance.  Further, the owner shall submit a signed letter 

certifying that they will comply with these standards in the operation of the sign. 

5. Verification of illumination levels, if necessary, shall be done utilizing the 

recommended practices described in the publication: Night-time Brightness Level 

Recommendations for On-Premise Electronic Message Centers, Updated August 2016 

and produced by the International Sign Association. 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 

 

Section 5. Publication and Effective Date 

 

This ordinance shall be in force and effect seven (7) days after its publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation within the City. 

 

 

 

YEAS:  

    

NAYS:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED ON ___________________, 2019 

 

 

    

      ____________________________________ 

      Gerald E. Arno, Mayor 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 

 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Cynthia D. Means, being the Clerk of the City of Jonesville, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

is a true and correct copy of the City of Jonesville Ordinance No. 218, passed on the ______ day 

of _________________, 201__.  Further, I certify I caused the same to be published in a newspaper 

of general circulation within fifteen (15) days after adoption by the City Council of the City of 

Jonesville, County of Hillsdale and State of Michigan. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this _____ day of  

_________________, 201___. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Cynthia D. Means, Clerk  



CITY OF JONESVILLE

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Jonesville Planning Commission will hold a public hearing on Wednesday, September 11,
2019 at 7:00 p.m. at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, Michigan, for the
purpose of hearing comments on Ordinance #218, an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance that
would modify regulations associated with Projections into Yards; and to allow Electronic
Changeable Copy Signs. Copies of the proposed ordinance are available at City Hall or online at
www.jonesville.org. Please submit written comments to City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street,
Jonesville, MI 49250 or via email to clerk@jonesville.org no later than September 10, 2019.

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of
Jonesville in writing at the above addresses or by calling (517) 849-2104.

Cynthia D. Means, Clerk
City of Jonesville











Page 1 of 2 

 

CITY OF JONESVILLE 

ORDINANCE NO. 219 

 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING AND ENACTING A NEW CODE FOR THE 

CITY OF JONESVILLE, MICHIGAN; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF 

CERTAIN ORDINANCES NOT INCLUDED THEREIN; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY FOR THE VIOLATION THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE 

MANNER OF AMENDING SUCH CODE; AND PROVIDING WHEN SUCH 

CODE AND THIS ORDINANCE SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE. 

 

THE CITY OF JONESVILLE ORDAINS: 

 

Section 1. Short Title.  This ordinance shall be known as the "City of Jonesville Code 

adopting ordinance" and may be so cited. 

 

Section 2.  Adoption of Code.  The Code entitled the “City of Jonesville Code” and also 

known as "Code of Ordinances, City of Jonesville, Michigan," published by Municipal Code 

Corporation, consisting of chapters 1 through 36, each inclusive, is adopted. 

 

Section 3. Repealer.  All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before 

October 16, 2019, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by reference 

therein, are repealed. 

 

Section 4.  Prior Ordinances not Revived.  The repeal provided for in section 3 hereof shall 

not be construed to revive any ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent 

ordinance that is repealed by this ordinance. 

 

Section 5. Penalty.  Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of 

a violation of any provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or issued in 

the pursuance thereof shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 or imprisonment for 

not more than 90 days, or both. Each act of violation and each day upon which any such violation 

shall occur shall constitute a separate offense. The penalty provided by this section, unless another 

penalty is expressly provided, shall apply to the amendment of any Code section, whether or not 

such penalty is reenacted in the amendatory ordinance. In addition to the penalty prescribed above, 

the City may pursue other remedies such as abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief and 

revocation of licenses or permits. 

 

Section 6. Code Additions or Amendments.  Additions or amendments to the Code when 

passed in such form as to indicate the intention of the City to make the same a part of the Code 

shall be deemed to be incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions 

and amendments. 

 

Section 7.  Later Ordinances.  Ordinances adopted after October 16, 2019 that amend or refer 

to ordinances that have been codified in the Code shall be construed as if they amend or refer to 

like provisions of the Code. 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Section 8. Publication and Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on the 

date of publication in a newspaper of general circulation. 

 

YEAS:  

   

NAYS:   

 

ABSENT:   

 

 

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED ON ___________________. 

 

 

 

    

______________________________  ______________________________ 

Gerald E. Arno, Mayor    Cynthia D. Means, Clerk 

 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 

I, Cynthia D. Means, being the Clerk of the City of Jonesville, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

is a true and correct copy of the City of Jonesville Ordinance No. 219, passed on the _____ day of 

_________________, 2019.  Further, I certify I caused the same to be published in a newspaper 

of general circulation within fifteen (15) days after adoption by the City Council of the City of 

Jonesville, County of Hillsdale and State of Michigan. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this _____ day of _________, 

2019. 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Cynthia D. Means, Clerk  











**Subject to Council Approval**

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL
Minutes of August 21, 2019

A meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, August 21, 2019 at the
Jonesville City Hall. Mayor Gerry Arno called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Council
members present were: Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr.,
Delesha Padula, and Andy Penrose.

Also present:  Manager Gray, Attorney Lovinger, WWTP Supt. Mahoney, Police Chief Lance,
DPW Supt. Kyser, Treasurer Spahr, Fire Chief Adair, Julie Games (HC Commissioner), Jim
Parker (JT Mfg.) and Jonesville Firemen Kurtis Bulloch, Rick Riggs, Adam Rose, Travis Sutton,
Scott Lucas, Randy Dunwoody, Joe Luna, Greg Draper, Neil Finegan,

Councilwoman Padula led the Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence.

A motion as made by Delesha Padula and supported by Andy Penrose to approve the agenda as
presented. All in favor.  Motion carried.

Julie Games, Hillsdale County Commissioner, provided updates to the Council.

The Public Hearing was opened at 6:39 p.m. by Mayor Arno for the purpose of hearing
comments on the request to rezone 402 W. Chicago Street. No comments were made.  The
Public Hearing was closed at 6:40 p.m.

Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Jerry Drake to accept the Planning
Commission recommendation and to approve the rezoning request to rezone the property at 402
E. Chicago Street from HC (Highway Commercial) to R-2 (Residential) on the following basis:
The proposed zoning district is consistent with the Future Land Use Map in the Master Plan; The
Proposed district is compatible with the uses in the vicinity of the site; and The property is non-
conforming to the current zoning district and is not of a sufficient size to be viable for use under
existing zoning. Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George
Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno. Nays:  None. Motion carried.

The Public Hearing was opened at 6:41 p.m. by Mayor Arno for the purpose of Transfer
Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificates #2011-487 and #2104-176 to JT Manufacturing
dba Jonesville Tool & Manufacturing, Inc. Jim Parker of JT Mfg. gave a brief update as to the
current status of the business.  The Public Hearing was closed at 6:43 p.m.

A motion was made by Tim Bowman and supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve
Resolution 2019-19 – Transfer Industrial Facilities Tax Exemption Certificates #2011-487 and
#2014-176.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George
Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno. Nays:  None.  Motion carried.

The Jonesville Fire Department Auxiliary presented the Council a check in the amount of
$10,700.00 to offset the cost of a Battery-Operated Extrication Equipment Purchase.



A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the purchase
of a Battery-Operated Extrication Equipment which will replace one set of cutters and one set of
spreaders at the purchase price of $21, 385.07.  All in favor. Motion carried.

Jerry Drake made a motion and was supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve the
agreement between Addison Fire and EMS Training Center and to authorize Chief Dean Adair to
execute the Waiver of Liability. All in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Jerry Drake to enter into Automatic Aid
Agreements with City of Hillsdale and Litchfield Fire Board for structure fires and to authorize
the City Manager to execute the agreements.  These agreements will supplement our existing
mutual aid agreement that allows for departments to assist when requested by another
department.  All in favor.  Motion carried.

Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Jerry Drake to award the contract for the
paving of Salem Drive, Oak Street and the Cemetery driveways to the low bidder of Michigan
Paving and Materials Company in the amount of $137,239.75.  All in favor.  Motion carried.

A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the pay
request to Ferguson Waterworks for the USDA Water System Improvement Contract No. 2 in
the amount of $175,703.55.  All in favor.  Motion carried.

Jerry Drake made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to approve Resolution 2019-16
to adopt the statewide Local Pavement Warranty Program.  Roll Call Vote: Ayes:  Tim
Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and
Gerry Arno.  Nays:  None.  Motion carried.

A motion was made by Tim Bowman and supported by Brenda Guyse to approve Resolution
2019-17 implementing the Local Pavement Warranty Program.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim
Bowman, Jerry Drake, Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and
Gerry Arno. Nays:  None. Motion carried.

Jerry Drake made a motion and supported by Delesha Padula to approve Resolution 2019-18 and
adopt the Electronic Tablet Device Policy.  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes:  Tim Bowman, Jerry Drake,
Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno.  Nays:
None.  Motion carried.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve the FY
2018-19 (Fiscal Year ending June 2019) Budget Amendments.  All in favor.  Motion carried.

The Fiscal Year 2018-19 Year End Budget Comparison (year ending June 30, 2019) was
provided to Council for their review. Overall, actual revenues and expenditures are in line with
budgeted figures.

Jerry Drake made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to approve the minutes of July
17, 2019 with one noted correction.  All in favor.  Motion carried.



George Humphries Jr. made a motion and was supported by Delesha Padula to approve the
Closed Session minutes of July 17, 2019.  All in favor.  Motion carried.

A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the Accounts
Payable for August 2019 in the amount of $223,259.41.  All in favor. Motion carried.

Updates were given by Department Heads, Manager Gray, and Council.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:37 p.m.

Submitted by:

Cynthia D. Means Gerald E. Arno
Clerk Mayor



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

1/2Page: 09/13/2019
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

09/19/2019

3,867.50 JPD/JFD/NORTH PKG LOT - CRACKFILLINGASPHALT RESTORATION, INC.
2,061.70 LOCAL/LONG DISTANCEAT&T

470.00 AUGUST CLEANING SERVICESBAKER, VICKI/B & B CLEANING, LLC
56.74 JFD - GASOLINEBRINER OIL CO., INC.

3,091.67 CEMETERY - AUGUST MAINT/BURIALSBUTTERS EXCAVATING & LAWN CARE, LLC
33.00 CITY HALL/JPD - OUTSIDE WINDOW CLEANINGCLEAR VIEW, B.R. LLC

495.90 JPD - UNIFORMS/SUPPLIESCMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC.
499.00 JPD - GUN LIGHTS
37.49 JPD - GUN MOUNTS

1,032.39 

470.90 DOWNTOWN/PARKING LOT LIGHTSCONSUMERS ENERGY
26.37 DDA - UNMETERED PARKING LOT LIGHTS

123.02 CITY-WIDE LED LIGHTS
1,624.17 CITY-WIDE STREET LIGHTS

282.56 JPD ELECTRICITY
9.54 FREEDOM MEMORIAL ELECTRICITY
1.34 CEMETERY ELECTRICITY

57.64 DDA - METERED PARKING LOT LIGHTS
27.73 FAST PARK ELECTRICITY
30.98 JFD - TRAINING ROOM ELECTRICITY

115.40 JFD - TRUCK BAY ELECTRICITY
4.06 RADIO TOWER ELECTRICITY

233.44 CITY HALL ELECTRICITY
51.68 DPW BUILDING ELECTRICITY
0.13 WRIGHT ST PARK ELECTRICITY

47.35 WATER TOWER ELECTRICITY
1.07 100 DEAL PKWY SPRINKLER METER

4,290.95 WWTP ELECTRICITY
1,376.00 IRON REMOVAL PLANT ELECTRICITY

429.23 DDA BUILDING ELECTRICITY
26.08 EMERGENCY SIREN ELECTRICITY

9,229.64 

53.75 UB refund for account: 001028-00COX CHAD
441.39 THEATRE STATUE ELECTRIC REPAIRSCROUCH ELECTRIC, LLC
214.96 ORDINANCE SUPPLIES/N PKG LOT NOTICECURRENT OFFICE SOLUTIONS
89.44 COPIER MAINTENANCE

199.25 OFFICE/OPERATING SUPPLIES
13.00 DDA - NORTH PARKING LOT NOTICE
40.19 OFFICE SUPPLIES

556.84 

662.19 NEW WATER METER SUPPLIESFERGUSON WATERWORKS
132.00 NEW WATER METER SUPPLIES

794.19 

92.49 UB refund for account: 001062-02FINK DEBBIE
33.93 DPW - CDL TESTINGFIRST ADVANTAGE OCC HEALTH SVC CORP

10,743.16 JFD - JAWS SPREADER/BATTERY/CHARGESFIRST DUE FIRE SUPPLY
10,641.91 JFD - JAWS CUTTER/DATTERY/CHARGER

21,385.07 

81.66 ELECTION MEALSFIRST NATIONAL BANK OMAHA
1,142.10 SUPPLIES/CONFERENCES

1,223.76 

8,370.83 WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTSFLEIS & VANDENBRINK ENG, INC.
13.90 MVP - REPAIRSGODFREY BROS., INC.
1.00 MVP - REPAIRS

14.90 

25.13 WWTP - OPERATING SUPPLIESGRAINGER
960.00 WWTP - REPAIRSGRIFFITHS MECH CONTRACTING, INC.

8,605.00 WWTP - HVAC UNITS
9,565.00 

13.21 JULY BOR BILLBACKSHILLSDALE COUNTY TREASURER
130.50 ZONING NOTICESHILLSDALE MEDIA GROUP
520.00 WATER - CROSS CONNECTION PROGRAMHYDROCORP, INC



INVOICE APPROVAL LIST

2/2Page: 09/13/2019
User: LSPAHR
DB: Jonesville

AmountDescriptionVendor

CITY OF JONESVILLE

09/19/2019

2,550.51 WATER - SUPPLIESIDEXX DISTRIBUTION CORP.
672.00 WWTP - VACTOR NOZZLESJACK DOHENY SUPPLIES, INC.
162.66 SUPPLIES/REPAIRSJONESVILLE HARDWARE
47.36 CITY HALL WATER/SEWERJONESVILLE, CITY OF
38.71 DDA - DRINKING FOUNTAIN
95.87 JFD WATER/SEWER
47.36 JPD WATER/SEWER
47.36 DPW WATER/SEWER

223.33 WWTP WATER/SEWER
49.02 WRIGHT ST PARK WATER/SEWER

549.01 

555.53 JPD - 19 FORD REPAIRSKEN STILLWELL FORD-MERCURY, INC.
566.33 WWTP - REPAIRSKENNEDY INDUSTRIES, INC.

1,337.00 WWTP - CHECK VALVE REPLACEMENT
1,903.33 

185.00 LEGAL FEESLOVINGER & THOMPSON, P.C.
200.00 DDA - MEMBERSHIP RENEWALMICHIGAN DOWNTOWN ASSOCIATION
175.00 GRAY - CONFERENCE REGISTRATION

375.00 

4.42 CITY HALL GAS SERVICEMICHIGAN GAS UTILITIES
38.49 JPD GAS SERVICE
58.46 GAS LIGHT SERVICE

101.37 

2,042.40 AUGUST MOWING SERVICESMICHIGAN LAWN & LANDSCAPE
40,100.00 PROPERTY & LIABILITY ANNUAL INVOICEMML LIABILITY & PROPERTY POOL

135.84 WATER - REPAIRSNORTH EAST FABRICATION CO, INC
279.00 JPD - UNIFORMSNYE UNIFORM COMPANY
258.00 JPD - UNIFORMS

(258.00)JPD - UNIFORMS
279.00 

474.00 WATER - TESTINGPARAGON LABORATORIES, INC.
83.41 JPD/WATER - REPAIRS/SUPPLIESPERFORMANCE AUTOMOTIVE

102.81 PARKS - PET WASTE BAGSPET WASTE ELIMINATOR
371.33 POSTAGE - WATER IMPROVEMENT BROCHUREPOSTMASTER
233.80 POSTAGE - WATER/SEWER BILLS

605.13 

77.40 JFD - UNIFORMSPOWERS CLOTHING, INC.
1,280.00 JPD/JFD - SEALCOAT/STRIPE PARKING LOTSOUTHERN MICHIGAN SEALCOATING, LLC

83.52 BS&A TRAININGSPAHR, LENORE
235.18 TRAFFIC SIGNAL ELECTRICITYSTATE OF MICHIGAN
70.00 HUGHES - WASTEWATER C EXAM APPLICATION

305.18 

729.00 WATER - IMPROVEMENT PROJECT BROCHURESTOCKHOUSE CORPORATION
1,247.33 GASOLINESUPERFLEET MASTERCARD PROGRAM
3,988.45 STREET SWEEPINGSUPERIOR SWEEPING SERVICE INC

207.43 MVP - REPAIRSTRI-COUNTY INTERNATIONAL TRUCKS, IN
437.88 MVP - RPAIRS

645.31 

27.47 MVP - SHOP TOWELSUNIFIRST CORPORATION
37.12 WWTP - UNIFORMS
37.12 WWTP - UNIFORMS
27.47 MVP - SHOP TOWELS
37.12 WWTP - UNIFORMS
48.75 CITY HALL/JPD - FLOOR MATS

215.05 

168.61 WATER/WWTP - SUPPLIESUSA BLUEBOOK
45.90 WWTP - SUPPLIES

214.51 

4,615.59 WWTP - SUPPLIESUSALCO LLC
25.00 DPW CELL PHONEVERIZON WIRELESS

175.88 ELECTION/WWTP/JFD SUPPLIESWALMART COMMUNITY/SYNCB

Total: 127,542.85 



MONTHLY OPERATING REPORT
August 2019

SUBMITTED: September 10, 2019

WATER FLOW WASTEWATER FLOW
MAXIMUM 272,000 MAXIMUM 300,600
MINIMUM 145,000 MINIMUM 266,100
AVERAGE 211,100 AVERAGE 279,000
TOTAL 6.545 MG TOTAL 8.6479 MG

CALLOUTS: None

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
The plant was in compliance with the NPDES permit limitations during the month of
August 2019.

All plant maintenance was completed.

The Auger Monster was placed back in service after the brush was replaced.

Plant Staff dried out the trickling filter flowmeter that was submerged when the trickling
filter pump station flooded.  The flowmeter is currently operating properly.

The number two water well pump was placed back in service after it was replaced and the
proper bacteria samples were taken.

Several areas at the facility received fresh paint.

Griffiths Mechanical installed the new HVAC equipment in the laboratory.

5-Day Biochemical Oxygen Demand



NPDES Permit Limit in August 2019—4 mg/l Monthly Average
The BOD-5 test tells us how much of the oxygen in the water is being used up or
demanded by the waste in the water.  High oxygen demand will deplete the oxygen in the
receiving water.  This will have adverse effects on the quality of life (fish) in the
Receiving stream.
Jonesville Monthly Average—4 mg/l
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—96.0 %

Total Suspended Solids
NPDES Permit Limit in August 2019—20 mg/l Monthly Average
Suspended solids are very important in controlling the process in the plant.  Suspended
solids are removed via settling clarifiers and are pumped to the anaerobic digester for
treatment.  The digested biosolids are applied to farmland at agronomic rates as fertilizer.
Jonesville Monthly Average—1.7 mg/l
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—98.9%

Total Phosphorus
NPDES Permit Limit in August 2019—1 mg/l Monthly Average
Phosphorus is a nutrient that promotes growth.  In fact, farmers use phosphorus as a
fertilizer on crop lands. Phosphorus is found in many cleaning agents and industrial
processes. Excessive phosphorus in wastewater promotes the excessive growth of micro
and macro-organisms in the receiving stream.  In other words, phosphorus promotes
excessive growth of algae and seaweed.  These plants demand oxygen from the water and
tend to decrease the quality of life in the receiving stream.
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.3 mg/l
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—92.9%

Ammonia Nitrogen
NPDES Permit Limit in August 2019—0.5 mg/l Monthly Average
Ammonia Nitrogen is the result of bacterial decomposition of organic nitrogen. Examples
Of organic nitrogen include animal and plant protein, amino acids and urea from urine.
Ammonia nitrogen is a very unstable form of nitrogen.  In wastewater plants ammonia
nitrogen is oxidized to form nitrite nitrogen.  Further oxidation of nitrite nitrogen will
form the stable compound called nitrate nitrogen.  This process is called nitrification and
occurs in the trickling filter towers.  If nitrification does not occur in the treatment plant,
it will occur in the receiving stream once again depriving oxygen from the aquatic
population.  Because of the sensitive nature of the microorganisms involved in the
nitrification process, the ammonia nitrogen limits are about the hardest to hit.
Jonesville Monthly Average—0.453 mg/l
Average Percent Removal from the Raw Wastewater—97.5%
Jonesville Daily Maximum—1.1 mg/l
Rick Mahoney



   Jonesville Dept of Public Works
  August 2019

   Monthly Report

   Yellow     White
Maintenance Paint Paint Top Dirt COLD MIX

0 HR DT
STATE HIGHWAYS 0 HR OT 0 Yd. 0 Ton

0 HR DT
MAJOR ROADS 0 HR OT 2.50 Gal. 8.50 Gal 0 Yd. 0 Ton

0 HR DT
LOCAL ROADS 0 HR OT 5 Gal. 3 Gal. 0 Yd. 0 Ton

0 HR DT
PARKING LOTS 0 HR OT 0 Yd. 0 Ton
POLICE STATION 0 HR OT 0 Yd.
FIRE DEPARTMENT 0 HR OT 0 Yd.
DPW DEPT 0 HR OT
LDFA 0 HR DT 4 Gal.

0 HR DT
WATER 0 HR OT 0 Yd. 0 Ton
Cemetery 0 Yd. 0 Ton

There were no call outs.
We have been doing the weekly Yard Waste Collection.
We black topped Evans & Dewitt Streets where we had broken water mains.
We repaired a catch basin on Maumee Street.
Drains were cleaned on State, Major & Local Streets.
We trimmed all the trees in the annex at the Cemetery in preparation of paving.
We have been watering the DDA flower pots & north parking lot flowers & the Rail Trail tree's.
We have been trimming trees around town.
MDOT had us cut the shoulders down on part of Beck Street after it was paved.
The Rail Trail was mowed.

Mike Kyser



Jonesville Police Department
116 West Chicago Road

Jonesville, Michigan. 49250

911 Police Service Administration (517) 849-2101 FAX (517) 849-2520

ACTIVITY SUMMARY FOR AUGUST 2019

Total reports written: 81
Burglary/Entry w/o Intent: 1
Assault and Battery: 0
UDAA: 1   Attempt: 1
Fraud: 2
Larceny: 0
Non Violent Domestic: 1
Malicious Destruction of Property: 0
Lost and Found Property: 0
Retail Fraud: 6
Driving Law Violations (MISD): 8
Public Roadway Accidents: 7
Private Property Accidents: 5
Obstructing Justice: 3
Other Arrests: 9 (warrants, traffic-DWLS/Revoked, etc.)
Nuisance Animals: 0
Civil Matter/Family Disputes: 5
Medical Emergency: 10
Alarms: 3
Trespass: 1
Suspicious Situations: 14
General Assistance: 14
Traffic/Moving Violations: 71
Warrants Received from Prosecutor: 8
August Patrol Shift Coverage: 70%

SEPTEMBER FOCUS
School Lock Down Drills JHS Football Games/Parade
Traffic Enforcement- Back to school Employee Evaluations




	Agenda 9-18-19 (p.1)
	Memo 09-18-19.pdf (p.2-3)
	6A.  PA 116 Application.pdf (p.4-18)
	6B.  Resolution 2019-20 State Trunkline Maintenance Contract and Signature Authorization.pdf (p. 19-20)
	6C. Water System Improvement Project - Contract No. 1 Pay Request (p.21-23)
	6D.  Ordinance #218 - Encroachments-ElectronicSigns.pdf (p.24-31)
	6E.  Ordinance #219 - Re-Codified Ordinances (p.32-33)
	6F.  MML Board of Director Ballot.pdf (p.34-36)
	6G.  Freedom Memorial Statement.pdf (p.37)
	7.  Minutes - August 21, 2019.pdf (p.38-40)
	8.  Accounts Payable (p.41-42)
	9B.  WWTP Report.pdf (p.43-44)
	9C.  DPW Report.pdf (p.45)
	9D.  JPD Report.pdf (p.46)
	9E.  Cash Report.pdf (p.47)

